
 
 

Graduate Board 
Thursday, May 12, 2022 

 
By Zoom: 

Join Zoom Meeting 
ID: 81242611103 

Passcode: 838395 
 

3:00-4:30 pm 
 

AGENDA 
 

 
1. Review/approval of the March 2022 and April 2022 Graduate Board minutes 

2. Review/approval of the May 3, 2022 Curriculum Committee report 

3. Review of 2022-23 Graduate Board membership 

4. 2022-23 Graduate Executive Committee 

5. 2022 Commencement debrief 

6. Graduate School Orientation program (Aug 24-25, 2022) 

7. Graduate School retention efforts (Ace) 

8. Draft policy on nonterminal master’s degrees (redux) 

9. Draft changes to letter of recommendation form (redux) 

10. Substantive change for SBE master’s degree programs 

11. Items arising 

 
 
 

https://www.google.com/url?q=https://maine.zoom.us/j/81242611103?pwd%3DcEU3amhPNXc0RnNOQ0MyYlQwOXlMUT09&sa=D&source=calendar&ust=1652536783114539&usg=AOvVaw1GLkXv3hT_lO4aHlrthJqV


 
 

Graduate Board 
Thursday, March 24, 2022 

 
By Zoom: 

Join Zoom Meeting 
ID: 88375847888 

Passcode: 310967 
 

3:00-4:30 pm 
 

AGENDA 
Meeting called to order:  3:05PM 
 
Attendance: E. Allan, P. Agrrawal, J. Artesani, T. Bowden, S. Butler, M. Camire, S. 
Campbell, A. Cruz-Uribe, S. Delcourt, J. Deisenrieder, S. De Urioste-Stone, D. Dryer, S. 
Ell, S. Fraver, J. Gill, A. Goupee, W. Gramlich, K. Huguenard, S. Klein, A. Knightly, N. 
Godfried, M. LaRocque, S. Marrs, J. McClymer, C. Murphy, N. O-Reilly, E. Pandiscio, F. 
Peterson, J. Romero-Gomez, J. Stoll, N. Stormer, G. Van Walsum, J. Walker, R. Wheeler, 
T. Yoo, Y. Zhu 
 
Guests:  Ace Barrera, Graduate Student Success Manager; Crystal Burgess, Director of 
Graduate Communications, Jeffrey Hecker, Psychology, Dyan Walsh, Social Work, 
Katie Glover, Climate Change Institute. 

 
1. Review/approval of the February 17, 2022 Graduate Board minutes 

Inadvertently omitted from attendance list – Nathan Godfried 
Pankaj Agrrawal– motion to approve 
Sharon Klein – 2nd 
Unanimous approval with the attendance edit 

 
2. Review/approval of the March 1, 2022 Curriculum Committee report 

 
 New Courses: 
EDT 574    Computational Thinking for Early Childhood and Elementary 
EDT 575    Integrating Computational Thinking for Middle and High School 
EMA 505   Mathematics Methods for Secondary Teachers 
PAX 590    Special Topics in Peace and Reconciliation Studies 
PAX 699    Masters Project 

 
Modifications: 
EDT 580    Summer Technology Institute   
EDT 657    Educational Practicum 
FSN 542    Sustainability, Nutrition and Health  

https://www.google.com/url?q=https://maine.zoom.us/j/88375847888?pwd%3DUDEzMnRNY2pjTTFUdVpWbGdNTVlBQT09&sa=D&source=calendar&ust=1648468647657541&usg=AOvVaw1bm7yg-V4C_t4RAtfv-oB7


M. Camire noted that the prerequisite for FSN 542 needed to be corrected to say “graduate 
standing or instructor permission.” 
 No further discussion 

Sharon Klein- Motion to approve 
 Sandy Butler- 2nd 
 Unanimous approval 

 
3. Announcements/updates 

a. UMSS – need judges/volunteers (GSG President Janina Deisenrieder) 
i. Link to sign up:  https://umaine.edu/umss/ 

Judging will be done remotely prior to the April 15 awards 
presentation 
 
GSG Appreciation Ceremony Information (April 27, 2022): 
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1KWBRyKFc3B80i7QF0zBiJ7
TDqv4HFWHttAVUJqFbDCc/edit 
 

Outstanding student submissions due April 15 (Only 5 responses thus far). 
GSG will recognize the students at GSG recognition event. 

 
b. Commencement update –  

Friday May 6 – 4:00PM – plan to arrive at 3:00PM – Memorial Gym 
Faculty participation is encouraged.   

If you plan to attend any of the commencement ceremonies, please 
let us know by completing the University of Maine 2022 
Commencement Attendance/Regalia Form by April 7, 2022. 
https://docs.google.com/forms/d/1tQeBz_vmaNCDug4XsW5CUWd
vXKHRoNXcRZYASCiHDog/edit 

 
 

c. ERGP (GERS) rollout  
i. Program to return a portion of the tuition generated by entrepreneurial 

programs.  (Graduate Tuition Revenue Sharing) 
ii. Getting close to being able to implement returning revenue to the pilot 

programs  (60% of the tuition revenue growth – through the college 
dean for distribution).  

1. Social work will be able to decide whether to use the UMaine 
Gold funds for a fixed length prior to the move to the ERGP. 

2. MBA – may be more complicated in setting up revenue return – 
but UMaine has the MBA program on the tyuition revenue 
return list. 

 
 
 
 
 

https://umaine.edu/umss/
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1KWBRyKFc3B80i7QF0zBiJ7TDqv4HFWHttAVUJqFbDCc/edit
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1KWBRyKFc3B80i7QF0zBiJ7TDqv4HFWHttAVUJqFbDCc/edit
https://docs.google.com/forms/d/1tQeBz_vmaNCDug4XsW5CUWdvXKHRoNXcRZYASCiHDog/edit
https://docs.google.com/forms/d/1tQeBz_vmaNCDug4XsW5CUWdvXKHRoNXcRZYASCiHDog/edit


 
d. Scholarship award recipients  

 
 

Graduate School Scholarships (2022-23) 
 

Atlantic Provinces and Quebec Scholarships: 
Melina Typaldos, CSD 
Alysha Eaton, CSD (renewed) 
Naomi LePage, CSD (renewed) 

 
Trustee Tuition Scholarships: 
Ashley Reynolds, FSN 
Katherine Matthews, ENG 
Tegwin Taylor, EES 
Esther Adekeye, BMS 
Rori Smith, IMD 
Hannah Schmidt, HTY 
Guzaloyo Zakhirova, GPL 
Noor Tofailli, GPL 
Aislinn Canarr, SWK 
Amelia Forman-Stiles SWK 
Chyanne Lesher, CSD 
Lauren Sabintino, CSD 

 
Thurgood Marshall Scholarships: 
Winnifred Joseph, GPL 
Jasmine Lamb, CSD (declined) 
Hui-Tung Karen Lee, CSD 
Christophe Mbuyi, AEP 
Hammed Ojugubele, GPL 
 
 

4. Academic Program proposals 
a. MBA concentration in Engineering Management – Dean Norm O’Reilly  

i. Students would do core 8 courses in MBA program & 3 courses in 
Engineering.  

ii. MBA is very popular with engineers – and many are working full time, 
so flexibility is very important.  Many students attend year round.   

Dean O’Reilly & Dean Humphrey have both approved the new 
program – and are ready to put it forward for further approval. 

iii. Alicia Cruz-Uribe asked if this was similar to some other schools 
curriculum.   Dean O’Reilly stated that it is very similar – and has a 
focus on project management.   

iv. Andrew Goupee – asked about requirement for students to enter.   
Dean O’Reilly responded that there are 5 different background 
courses – but, this is designed for someone with an engineering 
undergraduate degree.  Average work experience is 9 years 
before applying for an MBA. 



Motion to approve – Yifeng Zhu 
2nd Andrew Goupee 
Unanimously approved  
 

b. Graduate Certificate in Rural Integrated Behavioral Health in Primary Care 
Jeff Hecker and Dyan Walsh presenting 
Psychology and social work programs have obtained funding from HRSA – 
Will be offering continuing education for community, faculty, and students.   
 
Do individuals have enhanced opportunities to work in mental health? 
Specialized mental healthcare – but working as part of a team in primary 
care.   
 

Motion to approve - Dylan Dryer 
2nd - Nathan Stormer  
Unanimous approval to move forward to the Provost 

 
c. Graduate Certificate in Climate Science and Adaptation (revised proposal) – 

Katie Glover 
Proposal has been revised – name change to differentiate between this and 
existing certificate.  Clearer goals and expected outcomes.   
Substantive changes – there is a lot of language around targeting K-12 
educators.  There is a need in Maine and nationally.  CCI has some national 
recognition. 
Some of the programming will be moving forward this summer.  More 
information is available:   https://umaine.edu/summeruniversity/climate-
change-workshop/ 
 
 Motion to approve – Jim Artesani 
 2nd – Sandy Butler 
 Unanimous approval 
 

5. Revised draft policy on a land acknowledgment statement for theses and dissertations 
a. Executive Committee recommended that this becomes a strong 

recommendation to include in theses and dissertations, but not required. 
b. Programs should provide some support in developing the researcher 

positionality statement if that is an option. 
c. Option 1 (expected) - President’s Council on DIE recommended statement – 

and Option 2 - the addition of the research positionality statement.   
 
Sharon Klein suggested that we require Option 1 – and suggest Option 2  
We should update the template – there is a Word doc & a LaTex statement. 
Should it be “required” or “expected” to include?  If we put it in the 
template, students would have to make a conscience decision to remove it if 
they choose.   
 
Dylan Dryer suggested that if we “require” it – there may be some who 
challenge it. 
 

https://umaine.edu/summeruniversity/climate-change-workshop/
https://umaine.edu/summeruniversity/climate-change-workshop/


William Gramlich – we may need to provide education about it and allow 
for a more informed choice.   
 
 
Nathan Stormer – where do you stand in terms of research ethics – it does 
force students to think about this as part of it as well.   (Josh Stoll & Sharon 
Klein agreed with Nathan).   
 
Sharon Klein – wondering how many students know about the agreement 
between the Penobscot Tribe and the University…. suggested that maybe it 
be included in RCR courses moving forward. 
 
Scott Delcourt would like to talk to Amanda Ashe about this – and present 
one more modified draft to the Executive Committee one more time before 
putting it out for Graduate Board vote. 

 
6. Proposed revision of the Graduate School letter of recommendation form 

Suggestion from one of the Grad Programs to make the recommendation 
more specific.   
 
Dylan Dryer suggested adding:  “How does the applicant compare to any 
others that you have recommended?” 
 
Sharon Klein agreed with Dylan’s suggestion – and whether we wanted to 
add numeric bounds to that.  (“How many students have you recommended 
& where would this student rank relative to that?”)  
 
Crystal Burgess suggested that we add a 1-5 ranking (and illustrated an 
option within TargetX that would allow this).   
 
Scott suggested “top 10%”, “top 25%” or “below average”, etc…. 
Dylan Dryer suggested the following:  
“Approximately how many students have you agreed to write letters of 
reference for in the past 10 years? How does this particular candidate 
compare to those students?” 
 
Scott recommended that the Grad Executive Committee take another pass at 
the form and take a look at it again next month based on the suggestions 
from this meeting.  
 

 
7. Items arising – none  

 
 
Motion to adjourn – Yifeng Zhu 
 
Meeting Adjourned:  4:15PM 
 
 



 
 

Graduate Board 
Thursday, April 21, 2022 

 
By Zoom: 

Join Zoom Meeting 
ID: 83869023396 

Passcode: 928283 
 

3:00-4:30 pm 
 

AGENDA 
 

Meeting called to order 3:05pm 
 
Attendance:  L. Hakkola, P. Agrrawal, J. Artesani, N. O’Reilly, C. Beitl, J. Bonnet, T. 
Bowden, S. Butler, S. Delcourt, J. Deisenrieder, D. Dryer, S. Fraver, J. Gill, A. Goupee, H. 
Greig, W. Gramlich, K. Huguenard, M. Camire, A. Knightly, N. Godfried, Z. Ludington, 
C. Murphy, E. Pandiscio, F. Peterson, P.Poirier, S. Marrs, J. Romero Gomez, D. Rooks-
Ellis, G. Van Walsum, J. Settele, J. Walker, T.Yoo, Y. Zhu, N. Stormer  
 
 
Guests: Ace Barrera, Graduate Student Success Manager; Crystal Burgess, Graduate 
Communications Director. 

 
 

1. Congratulations on those Graduate Board members who recently have received a 

promotion to Associate professor with tenure! 

a. Seth Campbell, Glaciology 

b. Valerie Herbert, Nursing 

c. Zach Ludington, Spanish 

d. Leah Hakkola, Higher Education 

 

 

2. March Grad Board Minutes will be reviewed at the May meeting. 

 

 

 

https://www.google.com/url?q=https://maine.zoom.us/j/83869023396?pwd%3DMzFDNHhMdWl6YlU4cEZENzlpbXhwQT09&sa=D&source=calendar&ust=1650820340855035&usg=AOvVaw0dJqrCrHWKplMf41l4sHte


3. Review/approval of the April 5, 2022 Curriculum Committee report 

New Courses: 

BIO 500    Biological Inquiry and Analysis 

EHD 511   Classroom-based Prevention and Intervention 

ESC 552    Teaching Science in Secondary Schools 

MEE 520   Nanomaterials and Nanomechanics   

Modifications: 

  CMJ 515   Mass Communication Theory   

  FSN 586    Sensory Evaluation II 

 FSN 603    Nutrient Changes in the Food System 

  SED 505   Diversity of Development in Childhood 

 SEI 524     Supporting Play and Social-Emotional Development of Infants and 
Young Children 

Motion to accept – Sandy Butler 
2nd – Yifeng Zhu 
Approval with 1 abstention – Mary Ellen Camire 

 

4. Commencement update  

a. Graduate Commencement May 6, 2022 – Classes of 2020, 2021, and 2022 – 

largest Graduate Commencement ever – 414 students – including 60 PhD 

candidates participating and 138 faculty.   

 

5. 2022-23 Graduate Board membership – reminder that if your term is up – we will 

have the roll call next meeting to see who will be staying on, or who will be leaving 

Grad Board in AY 2022-23.   

 

6. Changing meeting time for Graduate Board? 

Is 3PM on the 3rd Thursday of the month still the best time to meet? 



Executive Committee recommends to continue with current time for 

AY2022-2023 and then move to 12:30-2PM on Thursdays starting 

in the Fall 2023.  This will allow faculty serving on GB to avoid that 

time in their teaching schedules. 

No objections heard from the Grad Board membership. 

Zach Ludington spoke in favor of the change – as did Hamish Greig.     

 

We will look toward moving back to live meetings with 

refreshments in the Fall 2022 semester! 

 
7. Revised draft policy on a land acknowledgment statement for theses and 

dissertations - see attachment in the April Grad Board Packet 

Jim Artesani – motion to approve 

Pank Agrrawal – 2nd 

 

Eric Pandiscio asked about the positionality statement and whether it was 

part of the template.  Scott Delcourt confirmed that it is not.  

Recommend the DEI land acknowledgment statement.  Many students will 

choose not to include a researcher positionality statement based on the 

nature of their research. 

This change would impact August 2022 grads and beyond.   

No further discussion - unanimous approval  

 

8. Draft policy on nonterminal master’s degrees – see attachment in the April Grad 

Board Packet. 

a. The proposal is to confer a nonterminal master’s degrees for students who 

have completed the stated master’s degree requirements or who have 

completed at least 30 credit hours exclusive of thesis credits and have been 

admitted to doctoral candidacy.  

i. The clinical psychology program currently confers a MA degree to 

their doctoral students who have been admitted to candidacy and 

have completed at least 30 credits 

ii. Other option where Master’s & PhD programs are closely related – 



complete requirements for non-thesis master’s degree.  

iii. Andy Knightly suggested a proposed revision to 1st sentence: 

replace “the most or all the” with “most or all of” 

iv. Dylan Dryer suggested that “this theoretically could also provide a 

satisfactory off-ramp for a PhD student who has completed Master's 

requirements, but has decided along the way not to continue.” Scott 

noted that this off ramp already takes place in many UMaine PhD 

programs. The student simply switches to the master’s degree. 

v. William Gramlich – asked for clarification regarding the 

requirements – either 30 hours of course work – where some 

programs may not hit the 30 hour requirement.   

vi. Christine Beitl suggested that they were already doing this in 

Anthropology.   Would students have to apply in order to receive the 

degree?  Under this policy – students would only need to apply to 

graduate (not apply through the Graduate School for the MA 

program).  The master’s program would be manually added with the 

approval of the graduate program coordinator and the Graduate 

School, and would be conferred at the next graduation term. Crystal 

Burgess added - we receive notification once the student applies to 

graduate – and that triggers the degree conferral.    This policy 

solidifies the ability to receive a master’s degree. 

vii. L. Hakkola asked what about doctoral students in education who 

already have a master’s degree? CAS or EdS is identified as 30 

credit post-master’s degree credential and could be awarded with 

revisions to the draft policy to include this option as opposed to a 

earning a master’s degree. 

viii. Jacquelyn Gill  - Is there a way to make it easier from the Grad 

School’s perspective to roll over into a PhD program from a 

Master’s program?  Some faculty doesn’t realize that students have 

to reapply once they complete a Master’s degree.  Scott responded 

that we should be able to streamline that process. 

Andy Knightly asked if a Master’s student can double count those 

credits?  For students who did a master’s degree at UMaine and then 



progressed to a doctoral degree, all the credits are already on the 

graduate transcript and may be potentially counted toward the 

doctoral degree. External graduate credits are a different matter and 

are limited to no more than 50% of total credits applied toward the 

doctoral degree.   

ix. Terry Yoo suggested that this was common in Computer Science to 

want to receive a Master’s degree – even if they were initially 

accepted for a PhD. However, an issue came up for an international 

student this year…visa requirements were impacted.  When degree 

is issued impacts the start of OPT, so international students should 

check with the office of international programs. 

 

9. Items arising 

a. Ace Barrera, Student Success Manager – upcoming initiatives 

i. Navigate – implementation this coming fall for Graduate Students   

More information coming in the upcoming months. 

Stuart Marrs suggested that in LAS they filled out a survey about 

using Navigate but, didn’t hear back. 

Nathan Stormer – the system may have more capacity than what we 

need. 

Jim Artesani – uses Navigate extensively.   

Scott Delcourt suggested that it may be most helpful for larger 

graduate programs to assist with retention.  (Education, Social 

Work, Business)  

There are also possibilities to post things like ACR reports via 

Navigate that may help speed up that process. 

ii. Ad Hoc Committee to discuss Mentor / Mentee Relationship – 

Advisor / Advisee Relationship.   

Ace will be reaching out to determine what guidelines, 

student handbooks, or documents that grad programs are 

providing for guidance to their grad students?  

iii. Student Surveys – what surveys do programs currently in place?  

Our focus will be on retention and student success.   We would like 



to collaborate with departments who may be doing something 

similar to avoid redundant requests for information and to ease the 

burden on graduate program coordinators. 

 

10. GSG has newly elected officers whose names will be released later this week. 

Spring Appreciation Event this coming week (April 27). 

 

May 12 – final Graduate Board Meeting of the AY 2021-22 academic year.  Please 

bring any new members who have been elected to Grad Board for next year. 

 

Meeting Adjourned 4:17PM 

 
 
 



     CURRICULUM COMMITTEE REPORT 

  

The Curriculum Committee met on May 3rd, 2022 and is recommending the following 
courses to the Graduate Board for approval at its May 12th meeting. 

  

New Courses: 

KPE 641    General Medical Conditions & Pharmacology 

MET 540   Lean Six Sigma 

 

Modifications: 

 SIE 505  Formal Foundations for Information Science 

 

Special Memo: 

Please see memo with several ECO prerequisite changes that were approved at the recent 
Curriculum Committee meeting.  

 

 
 
 



NAME TERM DEPT. GB MEMBER SIGNATURE PROXY

Allan, Elizabeth 2024 EDL

Agrrawal, Pankaj 2021 BUA*

Artesani, Jim 2022 EDU*

Beaupre, James 2021 Innov. & Eco. Dev.

Beitl, Christine 2023 ANT

Bolton, Jason 2021 Coop. Ext.

Bonnet, Jennifer 2021 Library

Bowden, Timothy 2021 AAR

Butler, Sandy 2022 SWK

Camire, Mary Ellen 2025 FSN

Campbell, Seth 2021 CCI

Cruz-Uribe, Alicia 2022 ERS / ECS

Delcourt, Scott - GS* - ex officio

Deisenreider, Janina GSG- President

De Urioste-Stone, Sandra OVPRDGS* - ex officio

Dryer, Dylan ENG*

Ell, Shawn 2022 PSY

Fraver, Shawn 2023 SFR

Gill, Jacquelyn 2021 SBE

Goupee, Andy 2024 MEE

GRADUATE BOARD MAY 12, 2022



Greig, Hamish EES

Gramlich, William 2022 CHY

Harding-Heber, Kathleen - GS - ex officio

Herbert, Valerie 2024 NUR

Huguenard, Kimberly 2024 CIE

Klein, Sharon 2023 SOE*

Knightly, Andy 2022 MAT

Knowles, Anne 2023 HTY Nathan Godfried

Karapurkar, Ameya 2020 GSG - Board of Trustees

LaRocque, Monique 2024 DLL Patricia Libby

Ludington, Zach 2024 MLC

Marrs, Stuart MUP 

McClymer, James 2021 PHY

Murphy, Christina 2024 WLE (replacement for Carly Sponarski)

Ohno, Stom 2021 PSE

Onsrud, Harlan 2021 SCIS

O'Reilly, Norm - BUA

Pandiscio, Eric 2024 EDU / HUD

Peterson, Franziska 2021 MST Susan McKay

Poirier, Pat NUR

Romero Gomez, Juan 2024 ANS

Rooks-Ellis, Deborah 2021 COEHD



Smith, Susan L. 2021 IMD

Stoll, Josh 2022 SMS

Stormer, Nathan COM

Van Walsum, Gerard (Peter) 2024 CHB/BME

Varahramyan, Kody - DEAN*

Vekasi, Kristin 2022 SPIA Jim Settele

Walker, Judy CSD

Wheeler, Rob BMMB

Yoo, Terry 2021 COS

Zhang, Zhen 2022 GSBSE      

Yifeng Zhu 2024 ECE*

*Executive Committee Member

TITLE SIGNATURE

SPEAKERS/GUESTS

NAME



Proposed Policy on Nonterminal Master’s, Ed.S. or CAS Degree 

 

Many University of Maine doctoral students complete most or all of the requirements for the 
program’s cognate master’s degree in the course of their doctoral study.  To recognize this 
achievement, a nonterminal master’s degree may be awarded if the student satisfies the following 
criteria: 

1. Student remains in good standing in the doctoral program. 
2. Student has completed at least 30 hours of graduate-level credit (exclusive of thesis 

credits) and has been admitted to doctoral candidacy or has met all the degree 
requirements for the cognate master’s degree. 

3. Student has no outstanding conditions on their admission and no outstanding financial 
balance owed to the University of Maine. 

Some graduate programs may place additional requirements on the student such as admission to 
doctoral candidacy, while certain programs may decline to award a nonterminal master’s degree.   

In University of Maine doctoral programs where students already possess a master’s degree and 
either the Ed.S. or CAS is an available degree (i.e. education and nursing, respectively), students 
may earn the Ed.S. or CAS upon meeting the same requirements described above. 

Process:  Upon satisfaction of the criteria for awarding a nonterminal master’s degree, the 
graduate program coordinator sends an approved program of study to the Graduate School.  The 
Graduate School will create a master’s degree record in addition to the student’s doctoral record 
and award the master’s degree in the next scheduled graduation term. 



�����������	
�������
���
���



����������	�
������������������������������������������������������ ��������!������""#� ���� �$"���������������������������������������������%�����"������������� ������"�&'(���"�)'(���"�)'(��� *��+���������������������������!��"�������������,�������$�����,-�.��������/����*�






























	GB Attendance List AY21-22 May update.pdf
	Attendance




